

CHAPTER 8
EDUCATION PROGRAMS FINANCED
S. F. 552

AN ACT relating to and making appropriations to agencies, institutions, commissions, departments, and boards responsible for education programs of this state.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state for each fiscal year of the fiscal biennium beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1983, the following amounts, or so much thereof as may be necessary, to be used by the following agency for the purposes designated:

	<u>1981-1982</u>	<u>1982-1983</u>
	<u>Fiscal Year</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u>
IOWA COMMISSION FOR THE BLIND		
For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes	\$ 893,900	\$ 920,800

Sec. 2. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state to the Iowa college aid commission for each fiscal year of the fiscal biennium beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1983, the following amounts, or so much thereof as may be necessary, to be used for the funding of the following programs for the purposes designated:

	<u>1981-1982</u>	<u>1982-1983</u>
	<u>Fiscal Year</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u>
1. IOWA COLLEGE AID COMMISSION		
For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes	\$ 317,595	\$ 341,704

2. TUITION GRANT PROGRAM		
To supplement the appropriation provided in subsection 1 of section 261.25 for tuition grants to full-time resident students attending accredited private institutions of higher education in Iowa under sections 261.9 to 261.16	\$ 2,071,500	\$ 2,750,000

3. VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL TUITION GRANT PROGRAM		
To supplement the appropriation provided in subsection 3 of section 261.25 for tuition grants to full-time resident students in a vocational-technical program in Iowa as provided in section 261.17	\$ 79,300	\$ 100,000

Sec. 3.
1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state to the Iowa college aid commission for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1982, the sum of ninety thousand (90,000) dollars, or so much

thereof as may be necessary, and for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1982 and ending June 30, 1983, the sum of sixty thousand (60,000) dollars, or so much thereof as may be necessary, to be used for the purposes provided in sections 261.26 and 261.27. Notwithstanding section 261.27, from the funds appropriated by this section not more than thirty thousand (30,000) dollars shall be allocated to each of the classes of students which received funds during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1980, which includes the second, third and fourth year classes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1981 and the third and fourth year classes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1982.

2. In addition to the requirements of sections 261.26 and 261.27, the availability of funds appropriated by this section is subject to the following conditions:

a. One-half of the funds appropriated for fiscal year 1981-1982 shall not be released until delivery to the legislative fiscal bureau of the June 30, 1981, financial audits, conducted by an independent third party, of the participating colleges of optometry.

b. One-half of the funds appropriated for fiscal year 1982-1983 shall not be released until delivery to the legislative fiscal bureau of the June 30, 1982, financial audits conducted by an independent third party, of the participating colleges of optometry.

Sec. 4.

1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state to the Iowa college aid commission for each fiscal year of the fiscal biennium beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1983, the sum of four hundred fifty thousand (450,000) dollars, or so much thereof as may be necessary, to be paid to the college of osteopathic medicine and surgery for the subvention program created pursuant to sections 261.18 and 261.19. Notwithstanding section 261.19, the subvention shall be used for the admission and education of not less than thirty percent of each of the classes of students in the college of osteopathic medicine and surgery that received funds during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1980, which includes the second and third year classes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1981 and the third and fourth year classes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1982.

2. In addition to the requirements of sections 261.18 and 261.19, the availability of funds appropriated by this section is subject to the following conditions:

a. One-half of the funds appropriated for fiscal year 1981-1982 shall not be released until delivery to the legislative fiscal bureau of the June 30, 1981, financial audits, conducted by an independent third party, of the college of osteopathic medicine and surgery.

b. One-half of the funds appropriated for fiscal year 1982-1983 shall not be released until delivery to the legislative fiscal bureau of the June 30, 1982, financial audits conducted by an independent third party, of the college of osteopathic medicine and surgery.

Sec. 5.

1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state to the Iowa college aid commission for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1981, and ending June 30, 1982, the sum of forty thousand (40,000) dollars and for the fiscal

year beginning July 1, 1982, and ending June 30, 1983, the sum of twenty thousand (20,000) dollars, or so much thereof as may be necessary, to be used for the purposes provided in sections 261.22 and 261.23.

2. In addition to the requirements of sections 261.22 and 261.23, the availability of funds appropriated by this section is subject to the following conditions:

a. One-half of the funds appropriated for fiscal year 1981-1982 shall not be released until delivery to the legislative fiscal bureau of the June 30, 1981, financial audits, conducted by an independent third party, of the participating colleges of podiatry.

b. One-half of the funds appropriated for fiscal year 1982-1983 shall not be released until delivery to the legislative fiscal bureau of the June 30, 1982, financial audits, conducted by an independent third party, of the participating colleges of podiatry.

Sec. 6. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state to the Iowa college aid commission for each fiscal year of the fiscal biennium beginning July 1, 1981, and ending June 30, 1983, the sum of twenty-five thousand (25,000) dollars, or so much thereof as may be necessary, to provide for a national guard education program. Funds shall only be expended for Iowa residents who are enlisted members in good standing in the Iowa national guard who are enrolled as an undergraduate in an Iowa post-secondary educational institution. Funds expended on behalf of each full-time undergraduate student shall not exceed two hundred fifty (250) dollars per year. Funds expended on behalf of each half-time undergraduate student shall not exceed one hundred twenty-five (125) dollars per year.

Sec. 7. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state for each year of the fiscal biennium beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1983 to the state educational radio and television facility the following amounts, or so much thereof as may be necessary, to be used for the purposes designated:

	1981-1982	1982-1983
	<u>Fiscal Year</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u>
For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes	\$ 4,817,603	\$ 5,045,076

Sec. 8. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state for each year of the fiscal biennium beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1983 to the department of public instruction the following amounts, or so much thereof as may be necessary, to be used in the manner designated:

	1981-1982	1982-1983
	<u>Fiscal Year</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u>
1. GENERAL OFFICE ADMINISTRATION		
a. For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes and membership fees for Iowa in the education commission of the states ..	\$ 3,077,158	\$ 3,225,533
b. For fire service education	\$ 190,800	\$ 200,000
c. For allocation to area education agency 6 for special education support services costs	\$ 80,791	\$

d. For allocation to area education agency 7
 for special education support services costs \$ 112,803 \$

e. Funds appropriated under paragraphs c and d of this subsection shall not affect the calculation of the state cost per pupil or any district cost per pupil.

2. VOCATIONAL EDUCATION ADMINISTRATION

For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes \$ 775,997 \$ 813,414

3. VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

For vocational education aid to secondary schools \$ 3,574,638 \$ 3,747,000

Funds appropriated by this paragraph are to be used for aid to school districts for development and the conduct of both continuing and new vocational programs, services and activities of vocational education through secondary schools, and for aid to existing jointly administered secondary vocational education programs, in accordance with the provisions of chapter 258 and chapter 280A, to purchase instructional equipment for vocational and technical courses of instruction in such schools, and to match federal reimbursement for continuing and new secondary vocational programs.

4. VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION

For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes \$ 2,483,910 \$ 2,603,679

5. PROFESSIONAL TEACHING PRACTICES COMMISSION

For the use of the professional teaching practices commission to carry out the provisions of chapter 272A \$ 49,145 \$ 51,515

6. VOCATIONAL YOUTH ORGANIZATION FUND

To carry out the provisions of section 258.14 \$ 9,540 \$ 10,000

7. SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE

For the purpose of providing assistance to students enrolled in public school districts and nonpublic schools of the state for breakfasts, lunches and minimal equipment programs with the funds being used as state matching funds for federal programs and which shall be disbursed according to federal regulations \$ 3,300,000 \$ 3,300,000

8. TEXTBOOKS OF NONPUBLIC SCHOOL PUPILS

To provide funds for costs of providing textbooks to each resident pupil who attends a nonpublic school or authorized by section 301.1. Such funding shall be limited to ten dollars per pupil and shall not exceed the comparable services offered to resident public school pupils .. \$ 381,600 \$ 400,000

9. SCHOOL BUDGET REVIEW COMMITTEE \$ 200,000 \$ 200,000

10. MERGED AREA SCHOOLS

a. For general state financial aid to merged areas as defined in section 280A.2 the amount of

forty-five million nine hundred twenty-six thousand nine hundred ninety-one (45,926,991) dollars for fiscal year 1981-1982 and forty-eight million one hundred forty-one thousand five hundred (48,141,500) dollars for fiscal year 1982-1983 to be allocated as follows:

(1) Merged Area I	\$ 2,119,236	\$ 2,221,421
(2) Merged Area II	\$ 2,953,268	\$ 3,095,669
(3) Merged Area III	\$ 2,669,781	\$ 2,798,513
(4) Merged Area IV	\$ 976,637	\$ 1,023,727
(5) Merged Area V	\$ 3,350,749	\$ 3,512,316
(6) Merged Area VI	\$ 2,876,874	\$ 3,015,591
(7) Merged Area VII	\$ 3,320,384	\$ 3,480,487
(8) Merged Area IX	\$ 3,739,631	\$ 3,919,949
(9) Merged Area X	\$ 5,582,281	\$ 5,851,448
(10) Merged Area XI	\$ 6,914,837	\$ 7,248,257
(11) Merged Area XII	\$ 2,159,952	\$ 2,264,101
(12) Merged Area XIII	\$ 3,219,951	\$ 3,375,211
(13) Merged Area XIV	\$ 1,157,334	\$ 1,213,137
(14) Merged Area XV	\$ 2,701,059	\$ 2,831,299
(15) Merged Area XVI	\$ 2,185,017	\$ 2,290,374

b. To be allocated to the merged area schools for continued support of programs begun during the fiscal years beginning July 1, 1979 and July 1, 1980 under Acts of the Sixty-eighth General Assembly, 1979 Session, chapter 13, section 7, subsection 11, paragraph d

\$ 190,800	\$ 200,000
------------	------------

c. To be allocated to the merged area schools for assistance in meeting increased utility and fuel costs which exceed energy conservation savings realized under an area school's energy conservation plan

\$ 600,000	\$ 600,000
------------	------------

d. To provide funds for matching federal reimbursement for continuing and new vocational education programs in merged area schools in accordance with the provisions of chapter 258 and chapter 280A, and to purchase instructional equipment for vocational and technical courses of instruction in such schools

\$ 8,299,800	\$ 8,700,000
--------------	--------------

e. For Merged Area V

For operation of the radio station	\$ 98,898	\$ 103,667
--	-----------	------------

f. For Merged Area XII

For operation of the radio station	\$ 98,898	\$ 103,667
--	-----------	------------

g. For Merged Area XIII

For operation of the radio station	\$ 98,898	\$ 103,667
--	-----------	------------

Sec. 9. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state to the state board of regents for each fiscal year of the fiscal biennium beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1983 the following amounts, or so much

thereof as may be necessary for use for the following designated purposes, however, as a condition for the appropriation of these funds, the state board of regents, for purposes of implementing and administering collective bargaining pursuant to chapter 20, shall act as the exclusive representative of the state of Iowa with respect to its faculty, scientific, and other professional staff.

	<u>1981-1982</u>	<u>1982-1983</u>
	<u>Fiscal Year</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u>
1. OFFICE OF STATE BOARD OF REGENTS		
a. For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes, including state board of regents members receiving a per diem not to exceed forty dollars per day	\$ 373,818	\$ 391,843
b. For western Iowa continuing education	\$ 95,400	\$ 100,000

Funds appropriated to the state board of regents shall be allocated to the institutions to be used for instructional purposes and direct instructional support.

2. STATE UNIVERSITY OF IOWA

a. General university, including lakeside laboratory.

For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes and for the pediatric department of the college of medicine to continue to fund the program of research at the current level in the cause, course, treatment, cure, and management of diabetes mellitus	\$92,397,351	\$97,294,990
---	--------------	--------------

b. University hospitals

For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes; for medical and surgical treatment of indigent patients as provided in chapter 255	\$20,819,800	\$22,046,392
---	--------------	--------------

As a condition of the appropriation made in this paragraph, funds appropriated in this section shall not be used to perform abortions except medically necessary abortions, and shall not be used to operate the early termination of pregnancy clinic except for the performance of medically necessary abortions. For the purpose of this paragraph, an abortion is the purposeful interruption of pregnancy with the intention other than to produce a live-born infant or to remove a dead fetus, and a medically necessary abortion is one performed under one of the following conditions:

(1) The attending physician certifies that continuing the pregnancy would endanger the life of the pregnant woman.

(2) The attending physician certifies that the fetus is physically deformed, mentally deficient, or afflicted with a congenital illness.

(3) The pregnancy is the result of a rape which is reported within forty-five days of the incident to a law enforcement agency or public or private health agency which may include a family physician.

(4) The pregnancy is the result of incest which is reported within one hundred fifty days of the incident to a law enforcement agency or public or private health agency which may include a family physician.

(5) The abortion is a spontaneous abortion, commonly known as a miscarriage, wherein not all of the products of conception are expelled.

c. Psychiatric hospital

For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes and for the care, treatment and maintenance of committed and voluntary public patients \$ 4,396,714 \$ 4,608,028

d. State hygienic laboratory

For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes \$ 1,699,565 \$ 1,781,515

e. Hospital school

For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes \$ 3,145,138 \$ 3,296,067

f. Oakdale campus

For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes beyond that amount underwritten from charges to counties, agencies, and individual patients at no less than twenty-five percent of per diem cost \$ 1,931,198 \$ 2,016,312

3. IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

a. General university

For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes \$76,208,384 \$80,161,263

b. Agricultural experiment station

For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes \$ 8,438,418 \$ 8,845,302

c. Cooperative extension service in agriculture and home economics

For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes \$ 8,048,331 \$ 8,436,406

4. UNIVERSITY OF NORTHERN IOWA

For salaries, support, maintenance, equipment, and miscellaneous purposes \$29,985,397 \$31,428,042

It is the intent of the general assembly that from funds appropriated in this subsection, twenty-five thousand (25,000) dollars shall be expended each fiscal year to support stipends for graduate students in the doctoral programs.

5. STATE SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF

For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes \$ 3,711,102 \$ 3,886,717

6. IOWA BRAILLE AND SIGHT-SAVING SCHOOL

For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes \$ 2,010,760 \$ 2,108,329

7. FAMILY PRACTICE PROGRAM

For allocation by the dean of the college of medicine, with approval of the advisory board, to

qualified participants, to carry out the provisions of chapter 148C \$ 1,140,030 \$ 1,195,000

Sec. 10. Section 261.18, subsection 1, Code 1981, is amended to read as follows:

1. There is established a subvention program for resident students who are enrolled in the college of osteopathic medicine and surgery of Des Moines, Iowa. The subvention program shall be administered by the commission in the manner provided in this section and section 261.19. The commission shall initiate an affirmative action program to insure equal opportunity for participation by women, men, and minority students in the program provided for in this section and section 261.19.

Sec. 11. Section 261.23, Code 1981, is amended to read as follows:

261.23 CONTRACT FOR RIGHT TO ENTER SCHOOL. In carrying out its duties under ~~the provisions of~~ section 261.22 the commission shall contract for the right of not less than five qualified persons for each academic class ~~to enter~~ of students which received funds during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1980, which includes the third and fourth year classes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1981 and the fourth year class for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1982, enrolled in accredited schools and colleges of podiatry ~~during each academic school year~~. The commission shall initiate an affirmative action program to insure equal opportunity for participation by women, men, and minority students in the program provided for in this section and section 261.22. Funds expended on behalf of each person shall not exceed four thousand dollars during any fiscal year. The commission shall make a report regarding its duties under section 261.22 to the legislative fiscal committee at such time as the legislative fiscal committee shall request.

Sec. 12. Section 261.35, subsection 5, Code 1981, is amended to read as follows:

5. "Eligible ~~student borrower~~" means a person, or the parent of a person, who is a resident of this state and is enrolled or will be enrolled at an eligible institution within or without the state or who is a nonresident of this state and is enrolled or will be enrolled at an eligible institution within the state and who meets the eligibility requirements established by the commission. The commission shall establish the qualifications for being a resident of this state, however, the qualifications shall not be more stringent than those established by the state board of regents.

Sec. 13. Section 261.36, subsection 4, Code 1981, is amended to read as follows:

4. Guarantee loans made by eligible lenders to eligible ~~students borrowers~~ who are, or whose children are, enrolled or will be enrolled at eligible institutions as at least half-time students as defined by the commission.

Sec. 14. Section 261.37, subsections 5 and 8, Code 1981, are amended to read as follows:

5. To promulgate rules pursuant to chapter 17A to implement the provisions of this division including establishing standards for educational institutions, lenders and individuals to become eligible institutions, lenders and ~~students borrowers~~. The rules and standards established shall be

consistent with the requirements provided in the Higher Education Act of 1965.

8. To develop and disseminate informational and educational materials to lenders, postsecondary institutions and ~~student~~ borrowers.

Sec. 15. Notwithstanding section 261.25, subsection 2, Code 1981, the standing appropriation* is limited to three hundred thirty-three thousand nine hundred (333,900) dollars for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1982.

Sec. 16. Notwithstanding section 267.8, Code 1981, the standing appropriation in that section is limited to one hundred thousand (100,000) dollars for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1982 and is limited to one hundred fifty thousand (150,000) dollars for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1982 and ending June 30, 1983.

Sec. 17. Notwithstanding section 285.1, subsection 3, paragraphs b and c, Code 1981, for the fiscal biennium beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1983, the reimbursement rate for the parent or guardian for transportation of public and nonpublic pupils shall remain at an amount equal to eighty dollars plus twenty-five percent of the difference between eighty dollars and the previous school year's statewide average per pupil transportation cost, as determined by the department of public instruction.

Sec. 18. Notwithstanding section 285.2, unnumbered paragraph 2, Code 1981, the standing appropriation in that section is limited to four million four hundred thirty-seven thousand (4,437,000) dollars for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1981 and ending June 30, 1982 and to four million six hundred fifty thousand nine hundred (4,650,900) dollars for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1982 and ending June 30, 1983.

If the funds appropriated in this section are not sufficient to pay the claims submitted by the school districts, the amount paid to each school district by the department shall be prorated on the basis of funds so appropriated. The difference between the amount of the claim of a school district and the amount of payment received from the department of public instruction shall be paid by the parent or guardian of the nonpublic school pupil transported.

Sec. 19. All federal grants to and the federal receipts of agencies appropriated funds under this Act are appropriated for the purposes set forth in such federal grants or receipts.

Sec. 20. Moneys appropriated by this Act shall not be used for capital improvements.

Sec. 21. The legislative council is requested to appoint a joint subcommittee composed of members of both political parties of the house and senate appropriations subcommittees on education and the house and senate committees on education to conduct a comprehensive study of the funding of the merged area school system in this state. The study may include, but shall not be limited to, the present formula used to allocate state funds, funding of various costs centers, funding for increased enrollments, funds expended for advertising purposes, coordination of vocational programs of area schools with vocational programs offered by other public and private educational agencies and institutions in this state, and funding related to

*According to enrolled Act

tuition increases and property tax revenues. The joint subcommittee shall make a report of its recommendations, accompanied by legislative bill drafts to implement its recommendations, to the legislative council and to the general assembly meeting in 1982.

Approved June 20, 1981

CHAPTER 9
SALARY ADJUSTMENTS AND EXPENSES

H. F. 875

AN ACT relating to the compensation and benefits for public officials and employees by specifying salary rates and ranges and providing salary adjustments, increasing mileage reimbursement rates for public officers and employees, providing reimbursement for interview and moving expenses, making coordinating amendments to the Code, and appropriating funds.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. The salary rates specified in this section are effective for the fiscal years indicated and the salary rates for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1982, are effective for subsequent fiscal years until otherwise provided by the general assembly. The salaries provided for in this section shall be paid from funds appropriated to the department or agency specified in this section pursuant to any Act of the general assembly or if the appropriation is not sufficient, from the salary adjustment fund.

The following annual salary rates shall be paid to the person holding the position indicated:

	<u>1981-1982</u>	<u>1982-1983</u>
	<u>Fiscal Year</u>	<u>Fiscal Year</u>
1. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE		
Salary for the secretary of agriculture	\$ 35,600	\$ 38,500
2. OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL		
Salary of the attorney general	\$ 47,000	\$ 50,700
3. OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR OF STATE		
Salary of the auditor of state	\$ 35,600	\$ 38,500
4. OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE		
Salary of the secretary of state	\$ 35,600	\$ 38,500
5. OFFICE OF THE TREASURER OF STATE		
Salary of the treasurer of state	\$ 35,600	\$ 38,500

Sec. 2. The salary rates specified in this section are effective for the fiscal years indicated and the salary rates for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1982, are effective for subsequent fiscal years until otherwise provided by the general assembly. The salaries provided for in this section shall be paid from funds appropriated to the department which the person represents and from funds appropriated by section 3 of this Act.